
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

San Mateo County Community College District 

May 16, 2011, San Mateo, CA 

 

The meeting was called to order at 1:05 p.m.  

 

 
Board Members Present:   President Richard Holober, Vice President-Clerk Dave Mandelkern, Trustees Helen 

Hausman and Patricia Miljanich, Student Trustee Barry Jointer 

  

Others Present: Chancellor Ron Galatolo, Executive Vice Chancellor Jim Keller, Skyline College President 

Regina Stanback Stroud, College of San Mateo President Michael Claire, Cañada College 

President Tom Mohr, District Academic Senate President Diana Bennett  

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS TAKEN 
President Holober said that at the end of the open meeting, the Board will reconvene to closed session to continue 

discussion of the closed session items listed on the printed agenda. 

  

DISCUSSION OF THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA 
None 

 

MINUTES 
It was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Trustee Miljanich to approve the minutes of the meeting of April 27, 

2011. The motion carried, all members present voting “Aye.” 

 

STATEMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

APPROVAL OF PERSONNEL ACTIONS: CHANGES IN ASSIGNMENT, COMPENSATION, PLACEMENT, 

LEAVES, STAFF ALLOCATIONS AND CLASSIFICATION OF ACADEMIC AND CLASSIFIED 

PERSONNEL (11-5-1A) 
It was moved by Trustee Miljanich and seconded by Trustee Hausman to approve the actions in Board Report No. 11-5-

1A. The motion carried, all members present voting “Aye.” 

 

Other Recommendations 

 

VACANCY ON SAN MATEO COUNTY SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVE BOARD (11-5-1B) 
President Holober said he has held the position of Board of Trustees representative on the San Mateo County School 

Boards Association Executive Board for some time but has been unable to attend the last few meetings. He said that 

Trustee Schwarz has expressed interest in the position. After ascertaining that no other Board member wished to assume 

the position, it was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Trustee Miljanich to appoint Trustee Schwarz. The 

motion carried, all members present voting “Aye.” 

 

ADOPTION OF ADDENDUM TO INITIAL STUDY AND MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR 

FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS AT COLLEGE OF SAN MATEO AND APPROVAL OF DEMOLITION OF 

THE BUILDING 20 COMPLEX AT CSM (11-5-100B) 
It was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Trustee Miljanich to adopt the Addendum to the Initial Study and 

Mitigated Negative Declaration for Facility Improvements at College of San Mateo. 

 

Barbara Christensen, Director of Community/Government Relations, said the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) requires that when a negative declaration has been adopted for a project and the project is changed in some way, 

the environmental impacts of the change need to be studied.  

 



2 

 
Ms. Christensen said that the CIP2 project at College of San Mateo included renovation of 10 buildings; demolition of 14 

buildings; construction of new Buildings 5 and 10; reconstruction of two swimming pools; renovation of parking lots, 

pedestrian pathways and plazas; a new main entrance; and internal roadway remapping, repaving and enhancement. In 

2006-07, the District completed an Initial Study for the complete CIP2 project at College of San Mateo. The Initial Study 

found no potential significant impacts on the environment from the CIP2 project that could not be mitigated to less than 

significant. The District then adopted a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) which included mitigation and 

monitoring activities that would be followed throughout the project. The Addendum presented tonight relies on the 2006-

07 Initial Study and MND and is an extension of the original Initial Study.  

 

Ms. Christensen said that in the 2006 Facilities Master Plan, the District planned to renovate Building 20. The plan now 

is to demolish the building because it is in great disrepair, is not ADA compliant and contains hazardous materials. In 

addition, the one classroom located in Building 20 is no longer needed because more than 40,000 square feet of office 

and classroom space have been added to College of San Mateo since 2006. The Horticulture program, located in 

Building 20, has been on hiatus for two years. The two Floristry classes serve approximately 4.3 full time equivalent 

students, the majority of whom are non-majors.  

 

As part of the project to demolish Building 20 and the associated greenhouse and lath building, the District would also 

build 125-200 parking spaces and renovate and preserve approximately 37,000 square feet of garden space. Ms. 

Christensen showed slides of the interior and exterior of Building 20, the greenhouse, lath house and south and north 

gardens. The Facilities Condition Index (FLI) for Building 20 is 68.36, which indicates it is in very poor condition; not 

much has been done to the building since it was constructed in 1963. The offices for the EOPS and Multicultural 

programs were housed in Building 20 but have moved to Building 10. The greenhouse is nearly 50 years old and the lath 

house is a wooden structure which is in very poor condition.  

 

Ms. Christensen pointed out the areas that will be preserved under the current recommendation. The entire Nettle and 

native garden, or north garden, will be preserved; this is 16,000-18,000 square feet of garden space. The District is 

working with a landscape architect and College faculty to identify the plants which are located in areas that will not be 

preserved and are critical to the science programs. These plants will be either transplanted or replaced within the north 

garden area. In addition, all of the slope areas, totaling approximately 18,000 square feet, will be cleaned up and 

preserved. The Building 36 south landscape area of approximately 7,000 square feet will also be set aside for plantings. 

 

Ms. Christensen said the change in the project from a remodel of Building 20 to a demolition required the District to 

complete an additional study on what potential environmental impacts there might be and whether they are different from 

what was found in 2006. Ms. Christensen introduced Terry Rivasplata, Technical Director with ICF International, the 

firm which completed the environmental analysis and Addendum. Mr. Rivasplata said CEQA provides that once a 

project has had an environmental document adopted – in this case, the Initial Study and MND in 2006 and 2007 – 

changes in the project are considered to be part of that same project and are examined to see whether they would have 

new or more severe impacts that either have not been disclosed in the previous environmental document or are more 

severe than had been previously disclosed. ICF International looked at the new project description, within the context of 

the prior Initial Study and MND, to see whether or not there would be new or more significant impacts. After examining 

each issue that was examined in the original document, plus the new issue of greenhouse gases, the conclusion was that 

there would not be any new or more severe impacts. All of the mitigation measures from the original Initial Study and 

MND continue to apply to the proposed change in the project. 

 

College of San Mateo student Shawn Kann presented a letter from a preservation lawyer, as well as petitions and other 

letters to go on record. President Holober said the Board received the letter from the lawyer earlier today. Mr. Kann said 

it is incorrect to state that the aesthetic characteristics reported in the 2006 Initial Study still apply to the proposed 

changes. He said that replacing the gardens with a parking lot would produce huge aesthetic effects. He said this area 

also has historical value, having been created in 1996. He said his opinion is that the original MND does not hold. 

 

Mike Ferreira said he was speaking in his capacity as Conservation Committee Chair of the Loma Prieta Chapter of the 

Sierra Club. He has served as a council member and planning commissioner in a jurisdiction which had land use issues. 

Mr. Ferreira said that when students came to the Sierra Club and politely requested help with process, he was hopeful 

that they would get good training and experience in public processes as they brought their concerns forward. He said he 

was expecting much more from the Addendum than what he saw; he believes he saw a conclusory statement that more 

parking is needed and another conclusory statement indicating where the parking is needed. He did not see any analysis 



3 

 
behind these statements. Mr. Ferreira said the process needs improvement and he believes that CEQA is not served by 

the document which is in front of the Board. 

 

Ken King said the Addendum presented to the Board is not a proper CEQA report because it does not contain analysis. 

With regard to aesthetics, the Addendum refers back to the 2006 Initial Study, saying there was no impact; however the 

Initial Study did not cover the demolition of Building 20. He said the report is dishonest to the public and to students.  

 

Linton Bowie, Instructor of Floristry, Horticulture and Biology at College of San Mateo, said she submitted a detailed 

letter to the Board this morning. She said she sees the gardens as a contiguous space; there are connections between the 

parts to be preserved, the habitats and the use of the gardens by both people and wildlife. She said the most recent 

information she had was that part of the north garden would not be preserved and she is pleased if that has changed, as 

indicated on the slide shown by Ms. Christensen. Ms. Bowie said the area between Buildings 36 and 19 has been graded 

and does not have well-developed topsoil; therefore, the type and quality of a newly created garden may not mitigate for 

the loss of the contiguous space of the garden. Regarding aesthetics and the cultural value of the gardens, Ms. Bowie said 

she sees people using the gardens regularly. She said the area is approximately 50 years old and contains many mature 

specimens, providing a unique space which cannot be recreated by the landscape plan. Ms. Bowie believes the 

Addendum should have analyzed the value of the space for people, educational programs and aesthetic quality. 

 

Craig Rush, a volunteer master composter, said he took a master composting class sponsored by the County of San 

Mateo and taught at College of San Mateo. The program trains people to teach residents how to compost garden waste 

and kitchen scraps, thereby reducing waste that goes to landfills. Mr. Rush urged the Board to preserve the current space. 

He said that as a society, we are disconnected from the earth and the soil; in this era of sustainability, we need to work 

together to become more connected. Gardens provide solitude, solace and time for thinking, as well as homes for native 

species. Parking lots, on the other hand, are fraught with problems, as people complain about having too much or too 

little parking. Mr. Rush provided his contact information to the Board and offered to teach any Board member how to 

compost. 

 

College of San Mateo student Bram Wallace said he discovered the gardens early in his first semester at the College and 

it is his favorite place on campus to study or relax. He said it is one of the only green places at the College and is filled 

with life. He said manicured lawns are not the same. He believes that building a parking lot in the space would result in a 

disconnection to the natural world and would have a very negative aesthetic impact. Mr. Wallace said there is not a need 

for another parking lot. The Hillsdale lot is empty and the new lot would simply be for the convenience of people who do 

not want a longer walk to Building 10.  

 

Gita Dev said she is a member of the District Bond Oversight Committee. However, tonight she is here as a member of 

the public. Ms. Dev said the District Facilities group is outstanding and their systems are exemplary compared with her 

experience at any other campus. Their judgment is excellent and they have made excellent use of bond money while 

dealing with problematic financials. However, in this case, she questions the judgment to convert gardens with a 

gorgeous view of the Bay to a parking lot. She said the District is already creating a huge parking lot on the other side of 

Building 36 and there is also some parking associated with Building 10, although most parking is not next to Building 

10. Students have two gardens with butterflies and animals and a place to be with friends or study. This is an amenity 

which the quad, while beautiful, will not have for another 25 years.  Ms. Dev said the Horticulture program is important 

to San Mateo County and she hopes the Board will take a long view of that; however, tonight she is here to advocate on 

behalf of saving the two gardens in their entirety and to make parking subservient to the gardens.  

 

Violeta Grigorescu, a Physics teacher and member of the classified staff at College of San Mateo, said she was born and 

raised in the Carpathian Mountains in Romania, where she grew up nurturing a profound respect and love for nature. She 

has worked at College of San Mateo since 2004. She said that when life and work get to be stressful, she has a secret 

oasis by Building 20 where she can sit for a few minutes every day. When she gets up and goes back to work, she feels 

strong and ready to give energy to others. Ms. Grigorescu said there are many others like her, from different places and 

different backgrounds; it is for them that she asks the Board to spare the gardens from destruction and give up the idea of 

a new parking lot, which would eliminate the last untainted place on campus, leaving a world of plastic-like grass, 

insecure trees and endlessly cemented areas. She said many members of the community dislike the heavily landscaped 

look of the College. 

 

College of San Mateo student Grace Noland said the garden is the first place that made her fall in love with the College. 

It is a secret place where people can go and feel at peace and this cannot be found anywhere else on campus. While she 



4 

 
enjoys walking around the campus and thinks it is beautiful, she believes it is also sterile. If the garden is removed and 

replaced with a parking lot, Ms. Noland fears she will no longer love the College as much as does now. She urged the 

Board to consider people who cherish the garden. 

 

Hearing no further comments from the public, Trustee Holober read the following, in preparation for Board discussion 

and vote: 

 

 “In approving this Addendum, the Board notes that this project was thoroughly analyzed in the Initial 

 Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) that was developed for the Facility Improvements at  College 

 of San Mateo in 2006/2007 and adopted by the Board on January 24, 2007.  That study found  that this project 

 created no significant impacts on the environment that could not be mitigated to be less than significant. 

 A copy of the MND is included as Attachment 1 to the Addendum. A complete copy of the IS/MND is 

 available for viewing in the Chancellor’s Office, located at 3401 CSM Drive in San Mateo.” 

  

Student Trustee Jointer noted that the analysis by ICF International states that the revised project would have no 

significant aesthetic impact to the campus, while those who spoke to the issue tonight believe there would be such an 

impact. He asked if the process for the analysis was done the right way. Mr. Rivasplata said there is no bright line as to 

what is significant and less than significant with regard to aesthetics, as beauty is in the eye of the beholder. He said that 

because a change is proposed in a project that has been previously approved, CEQA requires the District to look at the 

original analysis and how the change in the project may lead to new or more severe impacts that had not been analyzed 

before. ICF looked at whether or not, in the context of the vast changes that were proposed in 2006, this change would 

have substantially more severe or new impacts. Given the size and context of the projects that had been already analyzed 

and approved in 2006, ICF did not see that there would be new or substantially more severe impacts. ICF also looked at 

the lighting systems in the new parking lot to see whether there were provisions to make sure there would not be an 

escape of light to the sky at night. They found that there were mitigation measures and also a commitment from the 

District to reduce the potential for light overflow from the fixtures that would be installed; therefore this also did not 

produce new or substantially more severe impacts that had not been analyzed before. 

 

Student Trustee Jointer said he understands that the original study included the renovation of Building 20 and this is 

being altered. He asked if the garden area was scheduled to be removed in the original study. Mr. Rivasplata said the 

Initial Study did not look specifically at the gardens. Rather, it looked at whether the proposed project would result in 

significant changes to the aesthetics of the campus. The conclusion in 2006 was that the changes would not be 

significant. Student Trustee Jointer asked if it is Mr. Rivasplata’s position that the removal of the garden area will not 

cause a significant aesthetic impact to the campus. Mr. Rivasplata said that is correct; looking at the change in the 

context of the original plan that was approved, it is not reasonable to conclude that, because of this one change alone, the 

entire campus facilities project would suddenly have a significant effect on the environment. 

 

Ms. Christensen said that of the 154 acres at College of San Mateo, 86 acres are either landscaped, grass or not 

developed, and this is another reason that the change is not to be considered as having a significant aesthetic impact. 

 

Vice President Mandelkern asked staff or Mr. Rivasplata to discuss what role aesthetics plays under CEQA, how 

aesthetics is measured, and how an aesthetics determination was made in the 2006-07 Initial Study. Mr. Rivasplata said 

that in 2006, they used a commonly used federal methodology which looks at the context, intensity of the views and the 

number of people who would potentially have a view of the site. Although this is quasi-scientific, the issue of aesthetics 

always includes some kind of values judgment.  

 

Vice President Mandelkern asked if there is a relative scale to evaluate the aesthetic impact of buildings, particularly 

those that may be more than 50 years old and in deteriorating condition, such as the greenhouse, vs. the absence of those 

buildings vs. open space vs. parking and other types of aesthetic impacts. Mr. Rivasplata said that in 2006, they did not 

look at each building that was proposed for renovation or demolition and probably did not look at Building 20 

specifically. Rather, they took a broader look at the entire campus in terms of aesthetics. Vice President Mandelkern 

asked if ICF did anything different for the Addendum in terms of considering the aesthetic impacts of the removal of 

these buildings. Mr. Rivasplata said they did and, in context of the larger changes adopted in 2006, this did not seem to 

have substantially more severe aesthetic impacts. 

 

Trustee Miljanich said she believed the original plan called for filling in some of the garden area in question. Chancellor 

Galatolo said the original plan included relocating excess dirt from the Gateway project and using it to fill in the new 



5 

 
parking lot to make it closer to the grade of the rest of the campus. The lot would have covered the berm and all of the 

garden area. When faculty, staff and others brought to the District’s attention that these were critical learning areas and 

their removal would severely disrupt the academic mission of teaching and learning, the decision was quickly made to 

retain the north garden and the berm areas. Subsequently, the space allocated for parking shrank based on concerns about 

the north garden and other garden areas.  

 

Trustee Miljanich said she appreciates those who came and expressed their thoughts. She said that, like all important 

subjects, there will be disagreement and difficult choices will have to be made. The Board asked staff to work closely 

with all constituents to try to mitigate any impacts of the changes as much as possible, and she believes staff has done so. 

Trustee Miljanich said people can characterize lawns and landscaping as insignificant, as a few people have done tonight, 

but she disagrees. She requested information from staff and finds that there is significant green acreage on campus. There 

will always be a struggle to find balance and the District has been trying to find balance while serving the interests of the 

students it serves. The District does not have the luxury of not considering the cost of things and what other things the 

funds could be used for, such as classes for students. Trustee Miljanich said she appreciates that people like to have an 

area that is pretty to look at and be at. When she saw the area originally, it appeared to her to be overgrown and unkempt; 

she understands that this is her opinion and that beauty is in the eye of the beholder. Trustee Miljanich said she is 

convinced that the recommendation before the Board is in keeping with the law and in keeping with the needs of the 

campus at this point. Therefore, she will support the recommendation. 

 

Student Trustee Jointer asked if this project went through the shared governance process and, if so, what the feelings of 

the constituencies at College of San Mateo were. President Claire said the focus has always been on the programmatic 

needs of the College. The College has been working with faculty for more than a year to determine programmatic needs 

and he is confident those needs will be met with regard to the garden areas. President Claire said the landscape planning 

went through the shared governance process and was run through multiple iterations. He said that people hear different 

things; he continually hears how beautiful people think the campus is. 

 

Trustee Hausman said she appreciates everyone who participated, regardless of how they feel about the issue. She said 

this is not an easy or fast decision, as the issue has been discussed at several meetings and the Board has been provided 

with a substantial amount of written materials. Ultimately, the Board has the responsibility to make the decision, and will 

do so after considering everything they have heard, seen and read. 

 

Student Trustee Jointer said it is important that everyone took part in the process, including alumni and members of the 

community. He said it appears the recommendation will move forward and he hopes that the parking lot will not be 

limited to use by staff. He believes the probable passage of the recommendation is unfortunate, but said that life goes on 

and College of San Mateo will still have a beautiful campus and will have garden space. As long as there are students and 

community members who are passionate about the garden, Student Trustee Jointer believes they can maintain a space 

that is as good as or better than the current area. 

 

President Holober said he is very comfortable with the process used to prepare the Addendum. Having read the 

Addendum, he agrees with the conclusion that there are no new significant impacts that cannot be mitigated if the change 

is made. 

  

After this discussion, the motion to adopt the Addendum to the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration carried, 

all regular members present voting “Aye.” Student Trustee Jointer cast an advisory “No” vote. 

 

It was moved by Trustee Miljanich and seconded by Trustee Hausman to approve the demolition of the Building 20 

Complex. 

 

College of San Mateo student Bonnie Britton said that as she drove by Building 20 last week, she saw a sign directing 

the Soroptomist Club to Building 10. She believes that giving up a resource that people treasure in order to provide 

parking for staff and visitors is a serious and questionable decision. 

 

Mr. Wallace said the College is here to serve students. He said the parking lot is apparently for use by visitors and 

faculty. He said that faculty get paid to work here while students pay to come here. He believes there is an overemphasis 

on faculty not wanting to walk the extra distance. 

 



6 

 
Richard Jones said he noticed that Building 5 would be an excellent building to rent out if needed; therefore, the project 

could be moved over to Building 5 and it would be unnecessary to demolish the buildings in question. 

 

Trustee Miljanich said it would concern her greatly that Building 20 is not ADA compliant and that it would cost a great 

deal of money to renovate. It is also disturbing to think that the Board would be locked into making a decision at one 

point in time without taking into consideration economic changes or the changing needs of the campus, e.g. opportunities 

to provide classroom space in other buildings. Trustee Miljanich said she cannot imagine who would be put into Building 

20, which is not ADA compliant and not as safe as the new buildings or buildings that have been upgraded. She said 

there is only one classroom in Building 20 and that the space needs can be met in other places; it would concern her to 

pour funds into remodeling a building that is not needed. Trustee Miljanich said that, given the condition of Building 20 

and the greenhouse, they do not look historical to her. They look unsafe and unkempt and, under these circumstances, she 

believes it would be unfair to put anyone into the building. 

 

Student Trustee Jointer said he agrees that Building 20 should be demolished. When he first came to College of San 

Mateo in the fall of 2009 and walked around the campus, the first thing he noticed was that Building 20 was run-down 

and out of place. He toured the area again after being elected Student Trustee. He believes that, given the building’s 

condition, it would have to be flattened and rebuilt and this is not an affordable option. Student Trustee Jointer said that, 

while he recognizes that the Horticulture program needs a home, Building 20 has few people in it, is not well kept and 

does not fit in; therefore, he believes it must go. 

 

Vice President Mandelkern thanked students and members of the public for sharing their comments with the Board. He 

said the issue has generated much interest and commentary, both pro and con, over several months. He said these are 

difficult economic times and, with limited resources, the District cannot do everything it would like to do in a perfect 

world. Looking at the condition of the greenhouse and Building 20, he believes that pouring millions of dollars into 

renovating these buildings would be a poor use of the public’s money. Vice President Mandelkern said the Board has the 

responsibility to be the trustees of the public’s money and to make sure the resources are well-spent in serving the 

educational needs of students. He said he cannot see the point of keeping buildings that are past their useful life, contain 

hazardous materials and are not ADA compliant. It would be a poor use of time and money to keep the buildings 

standing and boarded up, simply to say they have been preserved. He believes it would also be a poor decision to 

completely rebuild these buildings when most of the use in the buildings has been replaced in other areas through new 

construction.  

 

Vice President Mandelkern said he appreciates that there is sentiment around the greenery and garden spaces. He 

believes that by preserving the north garden area, the berm and the south landscape slope, the District has tried to do a 

good job accommodating the needs and perspectives that been expressed. He said that parking lots can be used for other 

things in the future and provide the flexibility to examine what the needs will be in the area when resources become 

available for other projects.  

 

Vice President Mandelkern said that the Board has also been hearing the other side of the story, which is that there are 

programs on the north side of campus which are being impacted by the lack of parking. He commented that, while it is 

nice to say that people should ride their bikes or take the bus, we are in an environment in which bus service is being cut. 

He added that College of San Mateo is not a particularly bike-friendly campus. He said the fact is that the College needs 

to make its places accessible to the community. He said he does not see any realistic option being presented other than to 

take down Building 20 and the greenhouse.  

 

Trustee Hausman said she feels very sympathetic toward those who have feelings about the buildings and gardens. She 

said that sometimes difficult decisions must be made and this is one of those times. 

 

President Holober said he appreciates the comments from students, faculty and members of the public. He said he has 

attended some end-of-the-year events for the EOPS program which has been located in Building 20. He said EOPS is a 

wonderful program which provides opportunities for students coming from underprivileged and poor backgrounds to 

succeed in our community college system. It is a successful and vital program. However, President Holober said he was 

appalled that the program was put into the worst, most downgraded and dilapidated facility while these students were 

trying to move out of that very kind of environment. The EOPS program is now located in the center of campus in a 

brand new building, and its importance is acknowledged through its new physical location. To think of consigning these 

students back to the kind of “slum” building that Building 20 symbolizes is something that President Holober could not 

do. He said Building 20 has outlived it useful life. 



7 

 
President Holober said he is proud of what has been done at College of San Mateo, as well as at the other campuses. He 

said he personally would prefer to have a 200 to 300 year old Ivy League-like campus but that is not what we are. We are 

an institution which serves a huge number of students at a low cost. President Holober said he does not see the campus 

environment as being sterile, as some have suggested. He sees it as a first-class, high-quality, highly desirable 

environment, reflected in the fact that enrollments have been up and students have been turned away because demand is 

increasing. Looking at the bigger picture, President Holober said he believes students are being well served.  

 

President Holober said he understands that there are those who are attached to a particular building. However, when 

considering the costs involved in trying to make the building safe and ADA compliant, removing asbestos and all of the 

other costs vs. providing better state-of-the-art buildings, he believes the decision is simple. He said the decision to 

renovate or demolish and rebuild a building is made for every building, and a number of buildings on campus have been 

renovated. He would always suggest renovating a building before demolishing and rebuilding it if that is a financially 

viable choice because it is the more environmental choice. He said he is comfortable with the recommendation to 

demolish the Building 20 complex. 

 

Addressing those who came to speak specifically on the garden issue, President Holober said their voices have been 

heard. The current recommendation is significantly different than what was under consideration when the process started 

a few months ago when the recommendation was to eliminate the gardens entirely. The numbers President Holober saw 

reflect a net loss of open green or garden space of approximately 13,500 square feet, which is less than one-third of one 

acre. Given that there are 86 acres of outdoor open space on campus, the loss represents a very small percentage of the 

open space. President Holober said he hopes the public is looking at the entirety of what the District is doing to provide 

quality, state-of-the-art facilities and doing so in a way that is respectful to the environment. 

 

After this discussion, the motion to approve the demolition of the Building 20 complex carried, all members present 

voting “Aye.” Student Trustee Jointer cast an advisory “Aye” vote. 

  

AUGMENTATION FOR DISTRICTWIDE INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR PAINTING UNIT PRICE 

CONTRACT (11-5-101B) 
It was moved by Trustee Hausman and seconded by Trustee Miljanich to approve the augmentation as detailed in the 

report. The motion carried, all members present voting “Aye.” 

 

CONTRACT AWARD FOR CAÑADA COLLEGE ELECTRICAL INFRASTRUCTURE REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT (11-5-102B) 

It was moved by Trustee Miljanich and seconded by Trustee Hausman to approve the contract award as detailed in the 

report. The motion carried, all members present voting “Aye.” Vice President Mandelkern complimented staff on their 

success in generating a large number of bidders for this contract and the one that follows. 

 

CONTRACT AWARD FOR SKYLINE COLLEGE ELECTRICAL INFRASTRUCTURE REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT (11-5-103B) 
It was moved by Trustee Miljanich and seconded by Vice President Mandelkern to approve the contract award as 

detailed in the report. The motion carried, all members present voting “Aye.” 

 

STATEMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS 

Trustee Hausman said she attended the Skyline Automotive Banquet last Saturday night. This is the 19
th

 time she has 

attended the banquet in her 20 years as a Board member. She said the feeling in the Automotive Department is incredible 

and noted that the faculty know and care about each individual student. Among the awards presented were the “Broken 

Piston” and “Most Inspirational” awards. A group of women students has been formed, called “The Heart Wrenchers.” 

Many women from this group spoke and they are knowledgeable and articulate. The Toyota Corporation, which has been 

involved with the Automotive program for many years, is phasing out their participation and the Honda Corporation will 

be coming in to work with the program. Professor Rick Escalambre is loved by students and they presented him with a 

new iPad. 

 
Trustee Miljanich said she attended the awards ceremony last week for the ESL program at Cañada College and found it 

very inspirational. There were amazing student and alumni speakers, along with President Mohr and faculty members. 

She said such events are always a reminder to Board members of why they serve; it is wonderful to play some small role 

in supporting the future of so many people. 

 




